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Question 1
I have a question regarding Call for integrating Society in Science and Innovation H2020-ISSI-2014-1. Could you please let me know what the timeline for funding is? What is the maximum length of project implementation, which should be predicted in the proposal?

Answer 1
There is no minimum and/or maximum duration of the project set. It is up to the proposal proposers to plan duration and experts will assess this idea against the overall description of the project.

Question 2
For ISSI.5.2014.2015: is it necessary to develop a RRI-Plan for the whole institution or would it be sufficient to develop a RRI-Plan for a department of a big institution and maybe communicate the project-results to the whole institution after the end of the project?

Answer 2
This is left open for interpretation and depends on the size of the organisation – so a common-sense approach is encouraged. Regardless of the level of implementation (department-level or organisational level), the proposers will need to lay out a convincing argument why such a plan would be useful with respect to the level(s) at which they propose to apply it– which may differ for each partner of the consortium.
Question 3
Concerning the GARRI-1 call topic Fostering RRI uptake in current research and innovations systems. We are currently setting-up a project proposal with some partners from Austria, UK, Belgium and we are building up our consortium. However, all the partners in the current consortium have one question concerning the call text. To all of us the text resembles a lot a CSA project even though it is indicated to be an RTD project. Could you clarify with what is expected from the consortium as types of activities – more CSA type of actions such as round tables, policy analysis and reports drafting, involvement of wide range of stakeholders or research actions (and if the latter, could you give me an example)? We have a lot of experience in both CSA and RTD project but this remains unclear to us and we cannot finalize our consortium building since we are not sure what type of expertise we will need to answer to the call in the best possible way.

Answer 3

The topic GARRI-1 is indeed a research and innovation action. Research and innovation actions may in fact embed all the activities you mention (round tables, policy analysis and reports drafting, involvement of wide range of stakeholders or research actions), just as a CSA would. In addition though, they must have a research component (eg: methodological development and implementation) in relation to the call topic. 

They degree to which the proposal is research-focused is left up to the applicants – but a common sense approach is encouraged. 

Question 4

Regarding the  ISSI2.2014 call – citizens and multi-actor engagement for scenario building. We would like to ask two questions with regard to the deliverables/outcomes of the study. The first question concerns timing of the outcomes, the second the nature of the outcomes.
 ·         First, the call “ISSI.2.2014 - Citizens and multi-actor engagement for scenario building” mentions that “the outcome of this topic shall provide inputs to the 2016-2017 Horizon 2020 Work programmes”. However, a proposal for this call will have an expected start date in mid 2015, making it therefore very difficult to have usable results in time for the 2016-2017 work programme which we assume is published at the beginning of 2016. Can you please clarify who strict is the requirement to provide inputs to the 2016-2017 work programme?

 ·         Second, we were wondering how specific the outcomes of this research project should be. In the call it is mentioned that you anticipate scenarios of the role of research and innovation for desirable sustainable futures. Scenarios can be formulated in broad terms to reach a desirable –envisioned- future. On the other hand, one can also formulate more specific agendas to contribute to this future; e.g. a research agenda with specifically defined research topics (as was the case in Voices). There are merits for both approaches, the one allows for more flexibility, while the other provides more concrete options, and to an extent these two can be formulated at the same time. Could you please clarify a bit more the degree of specificity you anticipate? 

Answer 4
On 22nd July we published an amendment to the ISSI-2  topic. It now states that "The outcome of this topic shall provide inputs to the 2017 and beyond Horizon 2020 Work programmes and other relevant EU policy initiatives".

This timing now provides greater flexibility to arrive at some useful outcomes. We are already in the process of drafting "scoping papers" which are to set the overall context of the 2016-2017 calls. The actual topics are likely to be drafted during the period late 2014 to spring 2015. The final 2016 topics (and a first – although solid - draft of 2017 topics) will need to be ready by around June 2015. We expect that there will be some flexibility to adapt the 2017 topics until early/spring 2016 – via amendments to the Work Programme.

As far as your second question is concerned, the topic is open to interpretation. Regardless of which approach you chose (or any combination thereof) the choices will need to be well argumented, persuasive and fit for purpose:  to provide ideas for futures calls relevant to at least 3 H2020 societal challenges.

Question 5

Topic: Supporting structural change in research organisations to promote Responsible Research and Innovation

I would like to clarify the issue of financing the countries listed under the topic description: “The proposals should include an international dimension in particular with the following countries: Brazil, Republic of South Africa, India, Canada, Australia, Russia, United States of America, Japan and China”. Does it mean that funding for organizations from USA or Australia is foreseen and applicable under this call?

Answer 5
The reference to international cooperation is relevant to the ISSI-5 topic: "Supporting structural change in research organisations to promote Responsible Research and Innovation"

Information on international cooperation in Horizon2020 is available at:

http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=strategy
Also useful is an INCO wiki at:

http://www.ncp-incontact.eu/nkswiki/index.php?title=International_cooperation_in_Horizon_2020
And perhaps most importantly, via the "Guide for participants": 

http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=participate
This last document states that (page 2):

"In addition, legal entities established in countries not listed above and international organisations will be eligible for funding: 

− When funding for such participants is provided for under a bilateral scientific and technological agreement or any other arrangement between the Union and an international organisation or a third country: 

− When the Commission deems participation of the entity essential for carrying out the action funded through Horizon 2020. "

The "default" for the countries you mention (USA and Australia) would suggest that they are welcome as partners, but funding should be provided by their own sources. However, if the proposal can provide a very convincing argument in favour of these countries receiving an EC financial contribution, the EC may or may not accept this on a case by case basis. I would suggest that the respective bilateral Science and Technology agreements with these countries be perused, in order to make a more informed choice.

Science and technology agreements: http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=countries
Question 6
I have one question regarding to the call for proposal ISSI-5-2014-2015 Supporting structural change in research organisations to promote Responsible Research and Innovation. In call is written: „The proposals should include an international dimension in particular with the following countries: Brazil, Republic of South Africa, India, Canada, Australia, Russia, United States of America, Japan and China.” Does it mean that one or more of the partners in the project should be at least from one of above mentioned countries? If yes, is there any recommendation how many partners should be from these countries?
Answer 6

One or more of the partners in the project should be from the countries mentioned (more than one possibly). 

For the modalities of participation of partners outside the EU please check the information provided in the FAQs on the participant portal or read further below:

Information on international cooperation in Horizon2020 is available at:

http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=strategy
Also useful is an INCO wiki at:

http://www.ncp-incontact.eu/nkswiki/index.php?title=International_cooperation_in_Horizon_2020
And perhaps most importantly, via the "Guide for participants": 

http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=participate
This last document states that (page 2):

"In addition, legal entities established in countries not listed above and international organisations will be eligible for funding: 

− When funding for such participants is provided for under a bilateral scientific and technological agreement or any other arrangement between the Union and an international organisation or a third country: 

− When the Commission deems participation of the entity essential for carrying out the action funded through Horizon 2020. "

The "default" for the countries you mention (USA and Australia) would suggest that they are welcome as partners, but funding should be provided by their own sources. However, if the proposal can provide a very convincing argument in favour of these countries receiving an EC financial contribution, the EC may or may not accept this on a case by case basis. I would suggest that the respective bilateral Science and Technology agreements with these countries be perused, in order to make a more informed choice.

Science and technology agreements: http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=countries
Question 7
Is it possible that a project concentrates on one research area (Geothermy)? Or does it have to cover several research areas?

Answer 7 

The general rationale underpinning all Horizon 2020 topics is that call topics are less prescriptively worded than it used to be the case under the 7th Research Framework Programme (FP7). This means that the topics are sufficiently broad to allow for innovative proposals to emerge (in other words, ‘bottom-up approach’) and to offer their own prioritization within the broad scope of a call topic. Therefore, the consortium which shall submit a proposal is free to make the choices regarding the research area (or research areas) which considers appropriate taking into account the CALL and the specific Topic description. 

The European Commission and the European Commission representatives cannot get into details (in other words, provide answers, etc.) of specific proposals and/or of the content of the proposals or the ideas behind possible proposals to be submitted.

Question 8
ISSI-5-2014: We have some concerns about a point of the guidelines regarding the funding eligibility. Considering the following extracts of the call documents: - "The proposals should include an international dimension in particular with the following countries: Brazil, Republic of South Africa, India, Canada, Australia, Russia, United States of America, Japan and China." -"In addition, legal entities established in countries not listed above and international organisations will be eligible for funding: When funding for such participants is provided for under a bilateral scientific and technological agreement or any other arrangement between the Union and an international organisation or a third country" -the document on the international bi-lateral agreements at link: http://ec.europa.eu/research/iscp/index.cfm?lg=en&pg=countries Our question is whether Countries such as Brazil, Canada and USA are eligible for funds.
Answer 8
The countries listed in the query (Brazil, Canada and USA) are 'rich' or 'emerging' countries, and in principle they do not need EC support. Their eligibility for funding depends of whether their contribution is judged 'essential' to the success of the project. This will be determined by the panel of experts that will evaluate the proposal, and will be judged on a case by case basis. If  a proposal asks they be funded, the proposal will need to provide a strong argument that their tasks are in fact 'essential',  otherwise it will be assumed that they should obtain matching funds form their own countries.
Question 9
We are a consortium that aims to make a proposal for ISSI.1.2015. In the corresponding call 2014 there was a condition about the composition of the consortium that I cannot find this time. For ISSI.1.2014 ISSI.2.2014 is as follows: "The specific eligibility conditions are the following: The consortium shall comprise at least one of each of the following types of partners: research performing or funding organisations, industry / businesses, policy makers, Civil Society Organisations" It does not say anything about ISSI.1.2015 though. Is this correct? Are there no specific eligibility conditions for ISSI.1.2015?

Answer 9

You are right, the revised work programme available on the Participant Portal does not mention specific eligibility conditions for ISSI.1.2015 as it did for ISSI.1.2014.

However, the overall spirit of the topic remains the same. It is still recommended that the consortium contains a variety of partners from different stakeholder groups as it was the case for ISSI.1.2014.
